IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS OF
LUZERNE COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA
CIVIL ACTION - EQUITY

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

by Attorney General Josh Shapiro o | Case No. 2019-CV- )0 / 7 05921
Plaintiff, CIVIL ACTION
\2 :
RCMS AUTO SALES, INC.
d/b/a AUTO NOW :
“and

THOMAS HASHEM, individually and as
sole owner of RCMS AUTO SALES, INC.

Defendants.

NOTICE

YOU HAVE BEEN-SUED IN COURT. If you wish to defend against the claim set forth in the
following pages, you must take action within twenty (20) days after this complaint and notice are
served, by entering a written appearance personally or by an attorney and filing in writing with the
court your defenses or objections to the claims set forth against you. You are warned that if you
fail to do so the case may proceed without you and a judgment may be entered against you by the
court without further notice for any money claimed in the complaint or for any other claim or relief
requested by the plaintiff. You may lose money or property or other rights important to you. YOU
SHOULD TAKE THIS PAPER TO YOUR LAWYER AT ONCE. IF YOU DO NOT HAVE
A LAWYER, GO TO OR TELEPHONE THE OFFICE SET FORTH BELOW. THIS
OFFICE CAN PROVIDE YOU WITH INFORMATION ABOUT HIRING A LAWYER. IF
YOU CANNOT AFFORD TO HIRE A LAWYER, THIS OFFICE MAY BE ABLE TO
PROVIDE YOU WITH INFORMATION ABOUT AGENCIES THAT MAY OFFER
LEGAL SERVICES TO ELIGIBLE PERSONS AT A REDUCED RATE OR NO FEE.

AVISO

A USTED SE LE HA DEMANDADO EN LA CORTE. Si usted quiere defenderse contra la
demanda expuesta en las siguientes paginas, tiene que tomar accién en un plazo de veinte (20) dias
después que reciba esta demanda y aviso, por presentar una notificacién de comparecencia escrita
personalmente o por un abogado y radicar por escrito en la Corte sus defensas u objeciones a las
demandas presentadas en su contra. Se le advierte que si falla en hacerlo, el caso podria seguir
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adelante sin usted y un fallo podria ser dictado en su contra por la Corte sin previo aviso por
cualquier dinero reclamado en la demanda o por cualquier otro reclamo o desagravio pedido por
el/la demandante. Puede que usted pierda dinero o propiedad u otros derechos importantes para
usted. USTED DEBE LLEVAR ESTE DOCUMENTO A SU ABOGADO
INMEDIATAMENTE. SI NO TIENE ABOGADO, DIRIJASE O LLAME POR
TELEFONO A LA OFICINA CUYA DIRECCION SE ENCUENTRA ABAJO. ESTA
OFICINA PUEDE PROVEERLE CON INFORMACION SOBRE COMO CONTRATAR
-UN ABOGADO. SI NO TIENE LOS FONDOS SUFICIENTES PARA CONTRATAR UN
ABOGADO, ESTA OFICINA PODRIA PROPORCIONARLE INFORMACION ACERCA
DE AGENCIAS QUE PUEDAN OFRECERLES SERVICIOS LEGALES A PERSONAS
QUE REUNAN LOS REQEQUISITOS A UN HONORARIO REDUCIDO O GRATIS.

North Penn Legal Services, Inc. : Servicios Legales de North Penn, Inc.
33 N. Main Street, . 33 la Calle Main del Norte, Oficina 200
Suite 200 Pittston, PA 18640
Pittston, PA 18640 (570) 299-4100
(570) 299-4100 (877) 953-4250 Llamada gratuita
. (877) 953-4250 Toll free (570) 824-0001 Fax
(570) 824-0001 Fax '
101 West Broad Street 101 la Calle Broad del Oeste
Suite 513 Oficina 513
Hazleton, PA 18201 Hazleton, PA 18201
(570) 455-9512 : (570) 455-9512 .
(877) 953-4250 Toll free ' (877) 953-4250 Llamada gratuita
(570) 455-3625 Fax ' (570) 455-3625 Fax



THIS IS NOT AN ARBITRATION CASE-
This case has been brought by the
Commonwealth under the Pennsylvania
Unfair Trade Practices and Consumer
Protection Law, 73 P.S. §§ 201-1, et seq.,
AN ASSESSMENT OF DAMAGES
HEARING IS REQUIRED

IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS OF
LUZERNE COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIJA
CIVIL ACTION - EQUITY

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

" by Attorney General Josh Shapiro Case No. 2619-CV—
Plaintiff, . CIVIL ACTION |
V. ;. SWI905722
RCMS AUTO SALES, INC. : |
d/b/a AUTO NOW
and

THOMAS HASHEM, individually and as
sole owner of RCMS AUTO SALES, INC.

Defendants.

COMPLAINT

AND NOW, comes the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, by Attorney General Josh
Shapiro through the Bureaﬁ of Consumer Protection (hereinafter “Commonwealth” and/or
“Plaintiff”), which brings this. action on behalf of the Commonwealth pursuant to the provisions

of the Pennsylvania Unfair Trade Practices and Consumer Protection Law, 73 P.S. §§ 201-1 —201-

9.2 (hereinafter “Consumer Protection Law”), to restrain by permanent injunction unfair methods
of competition or unfair or deceptive acts or practices in the conduct of any trade or commerce,
declared unlawful by the Consumer Protection Law.

The Commonwealth believes that the public interest is served by seeking a permanent



injunction from this Hénorable Court to restrain the methods, acts and practices of the Defendants.
The Commonwealth believes that the citizens of the Commonwealth are suffering and will
continue to suffer harm unless the acts and practices complained of herein are permanently
enjoined.

The Commonwealth also seeks restitution pursuant to Section 201-4.1 of the Consumer
Protection Law. Additionally, the Commonwealth seeks appropriate civil penalties pursuant to
Section 201-8(b) of the Consumer Protection Law for all willful violations of said law, costs and
other appropriate equitable relief as redress for violations of the Consumer Prétection Law, as set
forth herein.

In support of this action, the Commonwealth respectfully represents the following:

JURISDICTION & VENUE

1. This court has original jurisdiction over this action pursuant to Section 931 of the
Judicial Code, 42 Pa.C.S. § 931(a).

2. Venue is proper pursuant to Rules 1006(a)(1),(b) and 2179 of the Pennsylvania Rules
of Civil Procedure. - |

THE PARTIES

3. Plaintiff is the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, acting by Attorney General Josh
Shapiro through the Bureau of Consmner Protection (hereinafter “Commonwealth” or “Plaintiff”)
located at 15% Floor, Strawberry Square, Harrisburg, Penﬁsylvania 17120.

4.  Defendant RCMS Auto Sales, Inc. (hereinafter “Defendant RCMS Auto Sales”
a'n‘d/or collectively as one of the “Defendants™), is a Pennsylvania business corporation registered
with the Pennsyl_vania‘Depaftment of State, Bureau of Corporations and Charitable Organizations:

Corporations Section (hereinafter “Corporations Bureau™) with a registered business address of



1429 Bryn Mawr Street, Scranton, Lackawanna County, Pennsylvania, which last operated at 141
Spring Street, Wilkes-Barre, Luzerne County, Pennsylvania.

5. Defendant Thomas J. Hashem, Jr. (hereinafter “Defendant Hashem” and/br
collectively as one of the “Defendants”), is an adult individual who resides at 416 East Main Street,
Dalton, Lackawanna County, Pennsytvania and at all times relevant hereto is the sole owner and
principal of Defendant RCMS Auto Sales.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

6. At all times relevant hereto, Defendants engaged in trade and commerce within the

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania by owning and operating a motor vehicle dealership, as defined

by Section 301.1 of the Automotive Industry Trade Practices, 37 Pa. Code §§ 301.1, et seq.
(hereinafter “Auto Regulations”), under the registered fictitious name “Auto Now.”

7. At all times relevant hereto, Defendants advertised, offered for sale, marketed, and
negotiated the sale of used motor vehicles from location.s at 4797 Birney Avenue, Moosic,
Pennsylvania 18507, 1500 Mulberry Street, Scranton, Pennsylvania 18510 and 141 Spring Street,
Wilkes-Barre, Pennsylvania 18702. |

8. | Unless otherwise specified, whenever reference is made in tnis Complaint to any act
of any of the Defendants, such allegation shall be deemed to mean the act of Defendant RCMS
Auto Sales and Defendant Hashem, acting individually, jointly, or severally, or in concert with
one another.

0. At all times relevant and material hereto, Defendant Hashem approved, endorsed,
directed, ratified, controlled, supervised, formulated, authorized, benefitted from and/or otherwise
participated in the cenduct aileged herein and the practices and operations conducted through the

business entity Defendant RCMS Auto Sales.



10.  The unlawful ects and practices complained of herein were carried out pursuant to
Defendant Hashem’s direction and control, and Defendant Hashem directly participated in such
unlawful acts and practices.

11. At all times relevant and ma'teri‘al hereto, the unlawful methods, acts and practices
complained of herein have been willfully used by Defendants.

12.  The State Board of Vehicle Manufacturers, Dealers and Salespersons (hereinafter
- “Board”) issued to Defendant Hashem a moter vehicle salesi)erson license, number MV229102,
on November 7,.201 i, which is currently active and set to expire on May 31, 2019.

13. The Board issued to Auto Now a motor Vehicle dealer license, number VD030198,
on April 14, 2011, which is set to expire May 31, 2019.

14. - Defendant Hashem is currently the only active salesperson licensed with the Board
to sell vehicles at Auto Now which license has enly been associated with and employed by Auto
Now during its activity. |

15.  Neither RCMS Auto Sales, Inc. nor Auto Now have ever been ‘dissolved as a
corporate entity and registered fictitious name with the Corporations Bureau and may continue to
operate and: conduct business in the Commonwealth.

16.  Upon information and belief, the Commonwealth avers that the Defendants are
using, have used, or are about to use methods, acts, or practices declared unlawful by Section 201-
3 of the Consumer Protection Law including, but not limited to, the following:

a. Misrepresenting the condition and/or roadworthiness of motor Vehicles sold; |

b. Failing to disclose to purchasers that some vehicles were not roadworthy as the
- vehicles were unable to pass State inspection; :

c. Misrepresenting in their advertisements, including website and dealer lot signage,
that Defendants have a credit restoration program to help customers restore their
credit when in fact Defendants do not have a credit restoration program;



d. Misrepresenting that Defendants have performed a “61 point” pre-purchase
inspection on all vehicles and all vehicles sold are all serviced by a licensed service
technician when, in fact, the Commonwealth believes that Defendants do not
perform a 61-point pre-purchase inspection nor are vehicles serviced by a licensed
service technician ;

e. Misrepresenting to consumers that vehicles purchased were in a condition
acceptable to qualify for a third-party warranty that Defendants advertised and sold
to consumers; '

f. Misrepresenting that a warranty was placed on “every vehicle” and that Defendants
service their warranties when in fact, in at least some instances, the vehicles sold
were not warrantable due to pre-existing mechanical issues that Defendants knew
or should have known existed,

g. Failing to service warranties or otherwise remedy consumer vehicles within a
-reasonable amount of time and without charge; and

h. Failing to include, in at least six (6) sales of motor vehicles, whether the motor
vehicles was “new” or “used” and a description of the prior usage on Defendants’
bills of sale.

17. The Commonwealth has received numefous consumer complaints regarding
Defendants’ business practices, some of which were filed by or on behalf of citizens that are age
sixty (60) years or over. The following is a sample of the allegations in the complaints submitted
to the Commonwealth by consumers:

a. On September 2, 2014, a Lackawanna County consumer purchased a vehlcle from
Auto Now for $7 045.92, which included a warranty for $125.00. Shortly after the
purchase, the consumer noted a noise coming from the engine compartment and on
October 2, 2014, the consumer contacted the warranty and requested that the
vehicle be inspected. On October 8, 2014, the warranty company diagnosed the
vehicle as having pre-existing engine issues that led to serious engine failure
necessitating rebuild or replacement. Despite the issues being pre-existing and thus
disqualifying the claim submitted by the consumer, the warranty company paid
$1,900.00 as a form of goodwill.

b. On February 4, 2015, a Lackawanna County consumer purchased a vehicle from
Auto Now for $11,364.21 along with a warranty through CARS Protection Plus for
$99.00. On February 23, 2015, the consumer contacted the warranty company in
an effort to arrange a claim on their vehicle only to find out that the policy had been
denied and a refund was sent back to the dealership on February 5, 2015. Shortly



17.  Upon information and belief, the Commonwealth avers that the Defendants are
using, have uséd, or are about to use methodé, acts, or practices declared unlawful by Section 201-
3 of the Conéumer Protection Law including, but not limited to, the following:
a. Misreprgsenting the condition and/or roadworthiness of motor vehicles sold;

b. Failing to disclose to purchasers that some vehicles were not roadworthy as the
vehicles were unable to pass State inspection;

c. Misrepresenting that Defendants have a credit restoration program,;

d. Misrepresenting that Defendants have performed a “61 point” pre-purchase
inspection on all vehicles and all vehicles sold are all serviced by a licensed service
technician;

e. Misrepresenting to consumers that vehicles purchased were in a condition
acceptable to qualify for a third-party warranty that Defendants advertised and sold
to consumers; -

f. Misrepresenting that a warranty was placed on “every vehicle”;

g. Failing to service warranties or otherwise remedy consumer vehicles within a
reasonable amount of time and without charge; and

h. Omitting material requisite information from bills of sale. .

18; The Commonwealth believes and therefore avers that there may be additional
consumers who have not filed complaints with the Bureau of Consumer Protection and who have
been harmed due to the methods, acts and practices of Defendants which include, but are not -
limited to, those as alleged her‘eiﬁ.

19.  Defendants have engaged in and may continue to engage in trade and commerce
within the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania by advertising, selling, offering and negotiating for

sale or lease, used motor vehicles and motor vehicle warranties.



19.  Defendants have engaged in and may continue to engage in trade and commerce -
within the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania by advertising, selling, offering and negotiating for
sale or lease, used motor vehicles and motor vehicle warranties.

20. The Commonwealth believes that the public interest is served by seeking a
permanent injunction to resfrain the methods, acts, and practices of the Defendants as hereingfter
set forth. |

21.  Inaddition, the Commonwealth requests ;injunc'tvive relief, civil penalties, costs and
other appropriate equitable relief for the Defendants’ violations of the Consumer Protection Law
as specifically requested in the Prayers for Relief in the various Counts of this Complaint herein
below.

COUNT I - VIOLATIONS OF THE AUTO REGULATIONS AND THE CONSUMER
PROTECTION LAW

DEFENDANTS ADVERTISED AND SOLD UNROADWORTHY VEHICLES AND
FAILED TO DISCLOSE OR MISREPRESENTED THE UNROADWORTHINESS OF
' THE VEHICLES

22.  The forgoing averments are incorporated as if fully set forth herein.

23. According to Section 201-3.1 of the Consumer Protection Law, “[t]lhe Attorney
General may adopt, after public hearing, such rules and regulations as may be necessary for the
enforcement and administration of [the Consumer Protection Law]. Such rules and regulations...
shall have the force and effect of law.” 73 P.S. § 201-3.1.

24. | The AutoAR’egulations were adopted for the enforcement and administration of the |
Consumer Protection Law as it r.elates. to new or used motor .Vehicle dealers, salespeople,
maintenance, service, or repair shops, and vehicle manufacturers.

25.  Defendants advertised that they sell quality motor vehicles at affordable prices;

however, Defendants sold numerous motor vehicles to Pennsylvania consumers that were not



roadworthy and in various states of disrepair such as engine failure, overheating, transmission
replacement required and/or otherwise uniable to pass State inspection.

26.  Defendants advertised, including on their website, www.autonow.net (hereinafter
“Website’;), that all vehicles are serviced and inspected wifh a “61 Point Inspection” by a licensed
service technician. Exemplary screenshots of the Website, including screenshots of pop-ups, are
attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit “A.”

27.  Defendants also represented to Pennsylvania consumers, including on their
business cards, that Defendants had “Every Vehicle State Inspected.” A true and corréct copy of
Defendants’ business card is attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit “B.”

28.  More than one used ﬁlotor vehicle sold by Defendants had undisclosed pre-existing

" mechanical defects that could ﬁot pass State inspection, were denied coverage by the third-party
warranty sold to the consumers by Defendants and/or Defendants failed_td service their represented
warranty. A true and correct exemplary, partially redacted copy of a deceptive sale of a warranty
for a vehicle with a pre-existing disqualifying condition is attached hereto as Exhibit “C.”

29.  The Commonwealth believes these mechanical defects would have been uncovered
if any inspection by a licensed service technician were performed by Defendémts.

30. The Comnionwealth believes these mechanical defects would have been serﬁced,
prior to sale to the consumer, if Defendants serviced every vehicle they sold with a licensed séryice
technician as represented.

31. | Upon information and belief, the advertised “61 Point Inspection” and servicing of
every vehicle before sale does not exist, is not performed by a licensed service technician aﬁd/or

is not performed for all of Defendants’ vehicles as represented to consumers.



32.  Defendants represented that all vehicles sold at Auto Now received a 61 Point
Inspection by a licensed service technician when they did not, in violation of Section 301.2 of the
Auto Regulations, and is considered an unfair method of competition and/or an unfair or deceptive
act or practice under the Consumer Protection Lew. 37 Pa. Code §§ 301.2(2), (3)(iv) and (6) and
73 P.S. §§ 201-2(4)(ii), (iii), (v), (vii), (ix) and (xxi).

33.  Defendants represented that all vehicles sold at Auto Now were State inspected
when Defendants knew or should have known that the vehicles were not State inspected, in
violation of Section 301.2 of the Auto Regs and Section 201-2(4)(ix) of the Consumer Protection
Law. 37 Pa. Code §§ 301.2(3)(iv), (5)(iii), (6) and 73 P.S. §§ 201-2(4)(ii), (iii), (v), (vii), (ix) and
(xxi).

34 .' Defendants failed to disclose to the purchasers that some of the vehicles Defendants
advertised and sold were not roadworthy as the vehicles were unable to pass State inspection, in
violation of Section 301.2 of the Auto Regs and is considered an unfair method of competition
and/or an unfair or deceptive act or practice under the Consumer Protection Law. 37 Pa. Code §§
301..2(3)(iv) and (5) a.nd 73 P.S. §§ 201-2(4)(vii) and (xxi). |

35.  Defendants misrepresented that they sell quality motor vehicles when Defendants
sold vehicles that were not roadworthy and in various states of disrepair such as engine failure,
overheating, transmission replacement required and/or otherwise unable to pass State inspection
in violation of Sections 301.2 of the Auto Regulations and is considered an unfair method of
competition and/or an unfair or deceptive act or practice under the Consumer Protection Law. 37
Pa. Code §§ 301.2(3)(iv) and (5) and 73 P.S. §§ 201-2(4)(vii) and (xxi). |

36.  Assuch, Defendants’ acts and practices constitute “unfeir methods of competition”

and/or “unfair or deceptive acts or practices,” as prohibited by the Auto Regulations as follows:



(a) The misrepresentation in any way of the size, inventory or nature of the business
of the advertiser or seller; the expertise of the advertiser or seller or his agents
or employees; or the ability or capacity of the advertiser or seller to offer price
reductions, 37 Pa. Code § 301.2(2); :

(b) The use of an advertisement or sales presentation as part of a plan or scheme
not to sell the vehicles or services advertised, or both, or not to sell the vehicles
or services advertised or presented at the advertised price by showing,
demonstrating or delivering advertised goods or services which are obviously
defective, unusable or unsuitable for the purpose represented or implied in the
advertisement or sales presentation, 37 Pa. Code § 301.2(3)(iv);

(c) Therepresentation in an advertisement or sales presentation that a motor vehicle
or motor vehicle goods or services are of a particular style, model, standard,
quality or grade if they are of another or if the representation conflicts with a
written notice or disclosure required, 37 Pa. Code § 301.2(5)(iii);

(d) A motor vehicle which is offered for sale is represented to be roadworthy, and
the advertiser or seller shall disclose prior to sale of a vehicle that the vehicle is
unable to pass State inspection if the advertiser or seller knows or should know
that the conditions exist in the motor vehicle, 37 Pa. Code § 301.2(5)(iii);

(e) The making of a representation or statement of a fact in an advertisement or
sales presentation if the advertiser or salesperson knows or should know that
the representation or statement is false and misleading or if the advertiser or
salesperson does not have sufficient information upon which a reasonable belief

- in the truth of the representation could be based. 37 Pa. Code § 301 2(6);

37 Pa. Code §§ 301.2(2), 301.2(3)(iv), (5)(iii), and (6).

37.  Assuch, Defendants’ acts and practices constitute “unfair methods of competition”
and/or “unfair or deceptive acts or practices,” as,prbhibited by Section 201-3 of the Consumer
| Protection Law, as defined by Sections 201-2(4)(ii), (ii1), (v), (vii), (ix); and (xxi) as follows:

(a) Causing likelihood of confusion or of misunderstanding as to the source,
sponsorship, approval or certification of goods or services, 73 P.S. § 201-

2(4)(in);

(b) Causing likelihood of confusion or of misunderstanding as to affiliation,
connection or association with, or certification by, another, 73 P.S. § 201-

2(4)(iii); -

(¢) Representing that goods or services have sponsorship, approval, characteristics,
ingredients, uses, benefits or quantities that they do not have or that a person
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has a sponsorship, approval, status, affiliation or connection that he does not
have, 73 P.S. § 201-2(4)(v);

(d) Representing that goods or services are of a particular standard, quality or
grade, or that goods are of a particular style or model, if they are of another, 73
P.S. § 201-2(4)(vii);

(e) Advertising goods or services with intent not to sell them as advertised, 73 P.S.
§ 201-2(4)(ix); and

(f) Engaging in any other fraudulent or deceptive conduct which creates a
likelihood of confusion or of misunderstanding, 73 P.S. § 201-2(4)(xxi).

| 73 P.S. §§ 201-2(4)(ii), (iii), (v), (vii), (ix), and (xxi).
| 38. The Commonwealth alleges that, at all times relevant hereto, al.l‘ of the methods,
acts and practices described above were performed willfully by Defendants.

39.  The Commonwealth believes that the public interest is served by seeking 1eefore
this Court a permanent injunction to restrain the methods, acts and practices descrieedv herein, as
well as seeking restitution for consumers and civil penalties for violations of the law. The
Commonwealth believes that citizens of the Commonwealth are suffering and will continue to
suffer harm unless the acts and practices complained of herein are permanently enjoined.

WHEREFORE, the Commonwealth respectfully requests that this Honorable Court issue
an Order:

A. Declaring Defendants’ conduct as described in the Complaint to be in violation of
the Auto Regulations and the Consumer Protection Law;

B. Permanently enjoining Defendants, their agents, successors, assigns and employees
acting directly or through any corporate device, from engaging in the aforementioned acts,
practices, methods of competition or any other practice in violation of the Auto Regulations and

the Consumer Protection Law;
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C. Directing Defendants to make full restitution to all consumers who have suffered
losses as a result of the acts and practices alleged in this Complaint and any other acts or practices
which violate the Auto Regulations and Consumer Protection Law, pursuant to Section 201-4.1 of
the Consumer Protection Law, 73 P.S. § 201-4.1;

D. Directing Defendants to pay civil penalties in the amount of One Thousand and
00/100 Dollars ($1,000.00) for each instance of a past or present violation of the Auté Regulations
and Consumer Protection Law, and Three Thousand and 00/100 Dollars ($3,000.00) for eagh |
instance of a past or present violation of the Auto Regulations and Consumer Protection Law -
involving consumers age sixty (6'0) or older as victims;

E. Declaring Defendants’ business to be dissolved and permanently enjoining
Defendants, individually or throﬁgh any business entity, from engaging in the automotive business
including, without limitation, selling, accepting deposits, marketing, advertising services and
repairing motor vehicles in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania;

F. Direcﬁng Defendants to forfeit and surrender their motor vehicle dealer license, and
any associated motor vehicle salespersons licenses, to the Department of Motor Vehicles;

G. Requiring Defendants to pay the Commonwealth for the cost of investigation and
prosecution of this action;

"H. Directing Defendants to disgorge and forfeit all profits derived as a result of unfair |
and deceptive acts and practices as set forth in this Complaint; and

L. Granting such other and further relief as the Court deerﬁs jusf, proper, and e.quitable

under the circumstances.

COUNT II — VIOLATIONS OF THE AUTO REGULATIONS AND THE CONSUMER
' PROTECTION LAW '
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DEFENDANTS MISREPRESENTED THE EXISTENCE AND COVERAGE OF
WARRANTIES

40. ~ The forgoing averments are incorporated as if fully set forth herein.

41.  Atall times relevant and material hereto, Defendants had a pattern and practice of
advertising and selling to consumers wanantieé that Defendants knew or should have known to be
unusable and that Defendants would not otherwise refund, repair or replace a vehicle, in violation
of Section 201-2(4)(xxi) of the Consumer Protection Law. 73 P.S. § 201-2(4)(xxi).

42.  Defendants made written promises regarding the nature of the workmanship and/or
otherwise undertook in writing to'refund, repair or replace a vehicle which constitutes a “written

warranty” as defined by Section 2301 of the Magnuson-Moss Warranty-Federal Trade

Commissioﬁ Improvement Act, 15 U.S.C.A. §§ 2301, ef seq. (hereinafter “Warranty Act”), 15
U.S.C.A. § 2301. True and correct exerhplary, partially redacted copies of warranties sold by
Defendants are attached hereto as Exhibit “D.”

43.  Defendants advertised to consumers that “Warranties [are] Available for Every
Vehicle” and that they “service [their] warranties.” See Exhibits A and B.

44.  Defendants also advertised to consumers that Defendants had “Every Vehicle State
Inspected” with a “61 Point Inspection” and serviced by a licensed service technician. See Exhibits
A and B. _ |

45. Defendants sold consumers warranties and, in at least some instances, the vehicles
sold were not warrantable due to pre-existing vehicle conditions that Defendants knew and failed

to disclose to the purchasing consumer. See Exhibit C.
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46.  The Commonwealth believes that a “61 Point Inspection” and servicing of every
vehicle sold by a licensed service technician Would‘ have revealed thé pre-existing issues with the
motor Vehicleé and remedied any pre-existing issue prior to sale.

47.  Defendants knew or should have known that some of thé used motor vehicles sold
by Auto Now had pre-existing issues and could not be warranted.

48. By misrepresenting that a warranty could be placed on “everf’ or “mostly every”
vehicle and that they service their warranties, Defendants’ conduct violates Section 301.2(6) of the
Auto Regulations and is considered an unfair method of competition and/or an unfair or deceptive
act or practice under the Consumer Protection Law. 37 Pa. Code. §. 301.2(6) and 73 P.S. § 201-
2(4)(xx1).

49.  When pre-existing issues manifested in at least oné (i) motor vehicle soon after the
sale that were discovered by a third-party warranty company, the consumers warranty claim was,
on informaﬁon and belief, at least initially denied. See Exhibit C.

50.  Thereafter, Defendants failed‘to service the warranty aﬁd the consumer paid a repair
shop, to replace the engine for the vehicle purchased. See Exhibit C.

51.  Onmore than one occasion, Defendants failed to service or honor the motor vehicle
warranties that they sold. S_@ e.g. Exhibit C.

52. Defendants’ failure to remedy consumer vehicles that had defects or malfunctions
withina réasonable amount of time and without charge violates Section 2304(a)(1) of the Warranty
Act. 15 U.S.C.A: § 2304(a)(1). |

53.  As such, Defendants advertised for sale warranties that did not comply with all

requirements of the Warranty Act, which violates Section 301.2(24) of the Auto Regulations and

14



is considered an unfair method of competition and/or an unfair or deceptive act or practice under
the Consumer Pfotection Law. 37 Pa. Code § 301.2(24) and 73 P.S. § 201-2(4)(xxi).

54.  Defendants also, on more than one occasion, represented to consumers that they
would repair, refund or replace a motor vehicle and then, when the consumer requested a repair,v
refund or replacement after purchasing the vehicle, Defendants refused claiming, in many
instances, that fhe vehicle was sold “as is.”

55.  Defendants misrepresented that any existing mechanical issues would be repaired
or otherwise taken care of by the Defendants, in violation of Section 301.2 of the Auto Regulations,
and is considered an unfair method of competition and/or an unfair or deceptive act or practice
under the vConsumer Protection Law. 37 Pa. Code §§ 301.2(6) and 73 P.S. §§ 201-2(4)(xxi).

56. | As such, Defendants’ afqrementioned acts and practices constitute “unfair methods
of competition” and/or “unfair or deceptive acts or practices,” as prohibited by the Section 301.2
of the Auto Regulations and Sectioﬁ 201-3 of the Consumer Protection Law. 37 Pa. Code. §§

.301.2(6) and (24) and 73 P.S. § 201—2(4)(xxi).

57.  The Commonwealth alleges that, at all times relevént hereto, all of the methodé,
acts and practices described above were performed willfully by Defendants.

58.  The Commonwealth believes that the public interest is served by seeking before
this Court a permanent injunction to restrain the methods, acts and practices described herein, as
w.ell as seeking resti;cution for consumers and civil pénalties for violations of the law. The
Commonwealth believes that citizens of the Commonwealth are suffering and will continue to
suffer harm unless the act;s and practicgs complained of herein are permanently enjoinéd.

WHEREFORE, the Commonwealth respectfully requests that this Honorable Court issue

an Order:
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A. Declaring Defendants’ conduct as described in the Complaint to be in violation of
the Auto Rggulations and the Consumer Protection Law;

B. Permanently enjoining Defendants, their agents, successors, assigns and employees '
acting directly or thrpugh any corporate device, from engaging in the aforementioned acts,
practices, methods of corripetition or any other préctice in violation of the Auto Regulations and
the Consumer Protection Law;

.C. Directing Defendants to make full restitution to all consumers who have suffered
losses as a result of the acts and practices allegedvin this Complaint and any other acts or préctices
+ which violate the Auto Regulations and Consumer Protection Law, pursuant to Section 201-4.1 of
thé Consumer Protection Law, 73 P.S. § 201-4.1;

D. Directing Defendants to pay civil penalties in the amount of One Thousand and
00/100 Dollars ($1,000.00) for each instance of a past or present violation of the Auto Regulations
and Consumer Protection Law, and Three Thousand and 00/100 Dollars ($3,000.00) for each .
instance of é past or present violation of the Auto Regulations and Consumer Protection Law |
involving consumers age sixty (60) or older as victims;

E. Declaring Defendants’ business to be dissolved and permanently enjoining
Defendants, individually or through any business entity, from engaging in the automotive business
inéluding, wifhout limitation, selling, accepting deposits, marketing, advertising services and
repairing motor vehicles in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania;

F.  Directing Defendants to forfeit and surrender theif motor vehicle dealer license, and
any associated motor vehicle salespersons licenses, to the Department of Motor Vehicles;

G. Requiring Defendants to pay the Commonwealth for »the cost of investigation and

prosecution of this action;
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H. Directing Defendants to disgorge and forfeit all profits derived as a result of unfair
and deceptive acts and practices as set forth in this Complaint; and
I Granting such other and further relief as the Court deems just, proper, and equitable

under the circumstances.

COUNT III — VIOLATIONS OF THE AUTO REGULATIONS AND THE CONSUMER
PROTECTION LAW

DEFENDANTS UTILIZED NON-COMPLIANT WRITTEN BILLS OF SALE

59. The'forgoing averments are incorporated as if fully set forth herein.

60.  Section 301.4 of the Auto Regulations prohibits a motor vehicle dealer from:
“using a printed or written contract form agreement, receipt or invoice in
connection with the sale of a motor vehicle which is not clearly identified
and which does not contain a description of the purchased vehicle as either
‘new’ or ‘used’ and, if used, a brief description of its prior usage such as
‘executive,” ‘demonstrator,” ‘reconstructed,” or any prior usage which is

required to be noted on a Pennsylvania Certificate of Title or which appears
~ on the title of any state through which the dealer has acquired ownership.”

37 Pa. Code § 301.4(a)(2)(iii).

61.  Inat least six (6) sales of motor vehicles, Defendants failed to include on a bill of
sale whether the motor vehicle sold wasv“new” or “used” nor did Defendénts provide a brief
description of its prior usage such as “executive,” “demonstrator,” “reconstructed,” or any prior
usage. True and correct exemplary, partially redacted copies of Defendants’ bills_of sale are
attaéhed hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit “E.”

62.  Each of Defendanfs’ failures to include this information én a bill of sale is a
violation of Section 301.4(2)(iii) of the Auto Regulations and is considered an unféir metﬁod of
competition and/or an unfair or deceptive act or pr.acticé under the Consumer Protection Law. 37

Pa.C.S. § 301.4(2)(iif) and 73 P.S. § 201-2(4)(xxi).
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63. | The Commonwealth alleges that, at all times relevant héreto, all of the methods,
acts and practices described above were performed willfully by Defendants.

64.  The Commonwealth believes that the public interest is served by seeking before
this Court a permanent injunction to restrain the methods, acts and practices described herein, as
well as seeking restitution for consumers and civil penalties for violaﬁons of the law. The
Commonwealth believes that citizqns of the Commonwealth are suffering and will continue to
suffer harm unless the acts and practices complained of herein are permanently enjoined.

WHEREFORE, the Commonwealth respectfully requests that this Honorable Court issué
an Order:

A, Declaring_ Defendants’ conduct as described in the Complaint to be in violation of
the Auto Regulations and the Consumer Protection Law;

B. Permanently enjoining Defendants, their agents, successors, assigns and employees
acting directly or through any corporate device, from engaging in the aforementioned acts,
practices, methods of competition or any other practice in violation of the Auto Regulations and
the Consumer Protection Law;

C. Directing Defendants to make full restitution to all consumers who have suffered
losses as a result of the acts and practices alleged in this Complaint and any other acts or practices
which violate the Auto Regulations and Constimer Protection Law, pursuant to Section 201-4.1 of
the Consumer Protection Law, 73 P.S. § 201-4.1;

D. Directing Defendants to pay civil penalties in the amount of One Thousand and
00/100 Dollars ($1,000.00) for each instance of a past or present violation of the Auto Regulations

and 'Consumer Protection Law, and Three Thousand and 00/100 Dollars ($3,000.00) for each

18



instance of a past or present violation of the Auto Regulations and Consumer Protection Lﬁw
involving consumers ége sixty (60) or older as victims;

E. Declaring Defendants’ business to be "dissolved and permanently enj_oining
Defendants, individually or through any business entity,l from engaging in the automotive business
including, without limitation, selling, accepting deposits, marketing, adverti‘sing services and.
repairing motor vehicles in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania;

F. Directing Defendants to forfeit and surrender their_ motor vehicle dealer license, and
any associated motor vehicle salespersons licenses, to the Department of Motor Vehicles;

G. Requiring Defendants to pay the Commonwealth for the cost of investigation and
prosecﬁtic)n of this action;

H. Directing Defendants to disgorge and forfeit all profits derived as a result of unfair
- and deceptive acts and practices as set forth in this Complain’;;land

L Granting éuch other and further relief as the Court deems just, proper, and equitable |
under the circumstances. |

COUNT IV - VIOLATIONS OF THE AUTO REGULATIONS AND THE CONSUMER
PROTECTION LAW

DEFENDANTS MISREPRESENTED THE EXISTENCE OF A CREDIT
RESTORATION PROGRAM

65.  The forgoing averments are incorporated as if fully set forth herein.
- 66.  Defendants advertised having a “Credit Restoration Program” to help consumers
restore their credit, including on the Website and on signage at the dealership. True and correct
pictures of Defendants’ lot and signs are attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference as

Exhibit “F”; see also Exhibit A.
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67.  Pursuant to Section 1679(b) of the Credit Repair Organizations Act (hereinafter

“CROA”), 15 U.S.C. §§ 1679 et seq., no person may “make or use any untrue or misleading
representation of the services of the credit repair organization” nor may any credit repair
organization charge or receive any money or other valuable consideration for the performance of
any service which the credit repair organization has agreéd to perform for any consumer before
such service is fully performed. 15 U.S.C.A. §§ 1679b(a)(3) and (b).

68.  Upon information and belief, the advertised “Credit Restoration Program” does not
exist.

69. - Atleast one (1) consumer relied upon Defendants’ misrepresentation that a “Credit
Restoration Program” exists.

70.  Defendants misrepresented that a “Credit Restoration Program” existed, in
v.iolation of Section 301.2 of the Auto Regulations and is considered an unfair method of
competition and/or an unfair or deceptive act or practice under the Consumer Protection Law. 37

Pa. Code § 301.2(2) and (3) and 73 P.S. §§ 201-2(4)(v), (vii), (ix) and (xxi).

71. The Commonwealth alleges that, at all times relevant hereto, éll of the methods,
écts and practices described above were performed willfully by Defendants.

72.  The Commonwealth believes that the public interest is served by seeking before
this Court a permanent injunction to restrain the methods, acts and practices described herein, as
well as seeking restitution for consumers and civil penalties for violations of the law. The
Commonwealth believes that citizens of the Commonwealth are suffering émd will continue to
suffer harm unless the acts and practices complained of herein are permanently enjoined.

WHEREFORE, the Commonwealth respectfully requests that this Honorable Court issue

an Order;
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A. Declaring Defendants’ conduct as described in the Complaint to be in violation of
the Auto Regulations and the Consumer Protection Law;

B. Permanently enjoining Defendants, their agents, successors, assigns and empioyees
acting directly or through any cofporate device, from engaging in the aforementioned acts,
practices, methods of competition or any other practice in violation of the Auto Regulations and
the Consumer Protection Law;

C. Directing Defendants to make full restitution to all consumers who have suffered
losses as a résult of the acts and practices alleged in this Complaint and any other acts or practices
Which violate the Auto Regﬁlations and Consumer Protection Law, pursuant to Section 201-4.1 of
the Consumer Protection Law, 73 P.S. § 201-4.1;

D. Directing Defendants to pay civil penalties in the amount of One Thousand and
00/100 Dollars ($1,000.00) for each instance of a past or present violation of the Auto Regulations
and Consumer Protection Law,land Three Thousand and 00/100 Dollars (83,000.00) for each
instance of a past or present violation of the Auto Regulations and Consumer Protection Law
involving consumers age sixty (60) or older aslvictims;‘

E. Declaring Defendants’ business to be dissolved and permanently enjoining
Defendants, individually or through any business entity, from engaging in the automotive business
including, without limitation, selling, accepting deposits, marketing, advertising services and

_repairing motor vehicles in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania;

F. Directing Defeﬁdants to forfeit and surrender their motor vehicle dealer license, and
any associated motor v.ehicle salespersons licenses, to the Department of Motor Vehicles;

G. = Requiring Defendants to pay the Commonwealth for the cost of investigation and

prosecution of this action;
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H. Directing Defendants to disgorge and forfeit all profits derived as a result of unfair
and deceptive acts and practices as set forth in this Complaint; and
L Granting such other and further relief as the Court deems just, proper, and equitable

under the circumstances.

Respectfully Submitted,

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
OFFICE OF ATTORNEY GENERAL

JOSH SHAPIRO
ATTORNEY GENERAL

Date: , 2019 By B
e
r Attorney General
i LALVLLIOY J.D #206839
Office of Attorney General
Bureau of Consumer Protection
15™ Floor, Strawberry Square
Harrisburg, PA 17120
Telephone: (717) 787-9707
Facsimile: (717) 705-3795 _
Email: jpsanchez@attorneygeneral.gov
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IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS OF
LUZERNE COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA
CIVIL ACTION - EQUITY

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
by Attorney General Josh Shapiro : Case No. 2019-CV-

Plaintiff, : CIVIL ACTION

V.

RCMS AUTO SALES, INC.
d/b/a AUTO NOW

and

THOMAS HASHEM, individually and as
sole owner of RCMS AUTO SALES, INC.

Defendants.

VERIFICATION

I, Zachery Everidge, being duly sworn according to law, hereby state that I am in excess
of eighteen (18) years of age and that I am an Agent for the Office of Attorney General, Bureau of
Consumer Protection and that I am authorized to make this Verification and that the facts set forth
in the foregoing Complaint are true and correct to the best of my knowledge or information and

belief.

Date: By:

£,a01ICLY L VOLIURE
Consumer Protection Agent
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IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS OF
LUZERNE COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA
CIVIL ACTION - EQUITY

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
" by Attorney General Josh Shapiro : Case No. 2019-CV-

Plaintiff, : CIVIL ACTION
V.

RCMS AUTO SALES, INC.
d/b/a AUTO NOW

and

THOMAS HASHEM, individually and as
sole owner of RCMS AUTO SALES, INC.

Defendants.

CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE

I certify that this filing complies with the provisions of the Public Access Policy of the
Unified Judicial System of Pennsylvania: Case Records of the Appellate and Trial Courts that
require filing confidential information and documents differently than non-confidential
information and documents.

For the Petitioner:
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
OFFICE OF ATTORNEY GENERAL

- JOSH SHAPIRO
ATTORNEV (AENFR AT

Date:

L A N Ll Lel s, INU., LUVOO T

Bureau of Consumer Protection

15™ Floor, Strawberry Square
Harrisburg, PA 17120

Telephone: (717) 787-9707

Facsimile: (717) 705-3795

Email: jpsanchez@attorneygeneral.gov
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